Proposed Constitution of the White Earth Nation

Gichi-manidoo-giizis midaasogonagizi ashi ningodwaaswi, Niizho-midaaswaak ashi zhaangaswi Gaa-aanike-ozhibii'igaadeg Waa-apenimoyang Ogimaawiwin

> Enaakonigaadeg Gaa-waababiganikaag OGIMAAWIWIN ENAAKONIGAADEG GAA-WAABABIGANIKAAG

NAAGAANIBII'IGAADEG

Gaa-waababiganikaag dazhi-anishinaabeg obimiwiidoonaawaa gaaizhichigenid ogitiziimiwaan ishkweyaang ji-biitaashkaagoosigwaa bimaadiziwaad, odinawemaaganiwaan, odoodemiwaan. Geyaabi odibaadodaanaawaa anishinaabeg keyaa enendamowaad, zoongide'ewaad, baapinendamowaad, manidoowendamowaad, zhaabwiiwaad, wiidookawaawaad wiijanishinaabemiwaan, miinawaa go anishinaabe-ogimaawiwaad.

Niinawind sa anishinaabewiyaang Gaa-waababiganikaag wiikanawendamaang keyaa bimiwidooyaang indoogimaawiwininaan, jibiitaakoshkaagoosiwaang, ji-mino-doodaagooyaang, ji-bizaanibimaadiziyaang, ji-ganawendamaang indakiiminaan, miinawaa jiganawendamaang keyaa ina'oonigooyaang ji-ogimaawiyaang, indinaakonigemin miinawaa indoozitoomin o'ow Ogimaawiwin Enaakonigaadeg Gaa-waababiganikaag.

THE CONSTITUTION **OF THE WHITE EARTH NATION**

PREAMBLE

The Anishinaabeg of the White Earth Nation are the successors of a great tradition of continental liberty, a native constitution of families, totemic associations. The Anishinaabeg create stories of natural reason, of courage, loyalty, humor, spiritual inspiration, survivance, reciprocal altruism, and native cultural sovereignty.

We the Anishinaabeg of the White Earth Nation in order to secure an inherent and essential sovereignty, to promote traditions of liberty, justice, peace, and reserve common resources, and to ensure the inalienable right of native governance for our posterity, do constitute, ordain and establish this Constitution of the White Earth Nation.

Chapter 1: Territory and Jurisdiction

The White Earth Nation shall have jurisdiction over citizens, residents, visitors, altruistic relations, and the whole of the land, including transfers, conferrals, and acquisitions of land in futurity, water, wild rice, public and private property, right of way, airspace, minerals, natural resources, parks, and any other environmental estates or territories designated by and located within the boundaries of the White Earth Reservation, as established and described in the Treaty of March 19, 1867, and over the reserved rights within the ceded waterways and territories of the Treaty of 1855.

Chapter 2: Citizens of the White Earth Nation Article 1

Citizens of the White Earth Nation shall be descendants of Anishinaabeg families and related by linear descent to enrolled members of the White Earth Reservation and Nation, according to genealogical documents, treaties and other agreements with the government of the United States.

Article 2

Services and entitlements provided by government agencies to citizens, otherwise designated members of the White Earth Nation, shall be defined according to treaties, trusts, and diplomatic agreements, state and federal laws, established by the government of the White Earth Nation.

Article 3

The Anishinaabeg and their descendants shall have the right to appeal to the President and to the White Earth Court any decisions that deny citizenship in the White Earth Nation.

Article 4

No person or government has the privilege or power to diminish the sovereignty of the White Earth Nation.

Chapter 3: Rights and Duties Article 1

The White Earth Nation shall make no laws that would establish a religion, or laws that would deny the free expression of religion, speech, or of the press and electronic communication.

Article 2

The White Earth Nation shall make no laws that deny the right of the people to peaceably gather or assemble for any reason, and shall make no laws that prohibit the right to petition the government for restitution, amendments, or redress of grievances, and no person shall be discriminated against for initiating or espousing an untimely or contrary petition about governance.

Article 3

The people shall not be denied the fundamental human rights of citizenship in the White Earth Nation.

Article 4

The people are equal under the law and no law, government policy, or agency practice shall discriminate in political, economic, social or cultural associations because of race, creed, sex, gender, disability, or social status.

Article 5

The freedom of thought and conscience, academic, artistic irony, and literary expression, shall not be denied, violated or controverted by the government.

Article 6

The secrecy of personal communication shall not be violated, and no censorship shall be practiced or maintained by the government.

Article 7

The right to own and transfer of private property is inviolable. The rights of property shall be protected, and private property expropriated for public use shall be according to due process of law and just compensation.

Article 8

No person shall be denied or deprived of life or liberty, except certain serious misdemeanors and felony convictions, and no criminal penalties shall be imposed without due process of law and judicial procedures.

Article 9

No person shall be apprehended by law enforcement officers without probable cause and due process of law or by warrant duly issued by a court.

Article 10

The people shall have the right to possess firearms

rules and regulations, and in policies and procedures except for convicted felons in accordance with state and federal laws.

Article 11

The people shall be secure in their homes, personal papers and documents, against entries, electronic and material searches, without a specific, descriptive warrant for adequate cause issued by a court. Each search and seizure shall require a separate, specific warrant issued by a court, except in cases of probable threats or potential emergencies.

Article 12

No person shall be obligated to testify or provide evidence in a court against himself or herself, and any confessions obtained under compulsion, torture, or threats, or after arrest and excessive detention, may not be admissible as evidence in court. No person shall be convicted or punished for a crime when the only evidence against him or her is a confession, except in cases of crimes that can be proven by other evidence.

Article 13

No person shall be subject to trial twice for the same criminal indictment or offence.

Article 14

No person shall be denied the right to be duly informed of the nature and cause of a warrant, indictment, or criminal proceeding, and shall not be denied the right to be represented by legal counsel.

Article 15

The people shall have the right to confront and challenge witnesses in a criminal court, and the legal option of a speedy court hearing or public jury trial shall not be refused or contradicted.

Article 16

Citizens shall never be banished from the White Earth Nation.

Article 17

The Constitution of the White Earth Nation is inspired by inherent and traditional sovereignty, and contains, embodies, and promotes the rights and provisions provided in the articles and amendments of the Indian Civil Rights Act of 1968, and the United States Constitution.

Chapter 4: Sovereign Immunity

The White Earth Nation declares sovereign territorial, political and cultural rights and powers as an independent government and immunity to civil law suits. The Legislative Council by certain formal policies and procedures shall have the right to waive the sovereign immunity of the government in the best interests of the White Earth Nation.

Chapter 5: Board of Elections

Article 1

Citizens must be at least eighteen years old to vote in government referenda and elections.

Article 2

Election and voting procedures shall be established by an Election Code and managed by an independent Board of Elections appointed by the Legislative Council.

2

Article 3

The Board of Elections shall consist of five eligible citizen voters of the White Earth Nation. The Chief Judge of the Board of Elections shall administer and supervise election regulations and procedures according to provisions of the Election Code. The Chief Judge shall not vote as a member of the Board of Elections.

Article 4

Members of the Board of Elections shall ensure fair and impartial elections according to the Election Code and the Constitution of the White Earth Nation.

Article 5

The Legislative Council shall resolve any challenges or allegations of impropriety of election laws or procedures.

Article 6

Citizens who become candidates for elected positions in the government shall not be members of the Board of Elections. The Legislative Council shall appoint the Chief Judge and replacements to the Board of Elections.

Chapter 6: Governance

Article 1

The White Earth Nation shall be governed by a representative and elected Legislative Council.

Article 2

The Legislative Council shall consist of a President, or White Earth Chief, the Secretary Treasurer, and elected Representatives of acknowledged communities of the White Earth Nation.

Article 3

The respective communities shall be entitled to one elected Representative to serve on the Legislative Council.

Article 4

Communities shall be established or changed by petition, by population, historic or totemic associations, and ratified by a simple majority of eligible citizen voters in a general referendum.

Article 5

The President and the Secretary Treasurer shall be elected at large by eligible citizen voters of the White Earth Nation.

Article 6

The President, Secretary Treasure, and Representatives of the Legislative Council shall be elected for no more than two four year terms, and staggered elections shall be ordered every two years.

Article 7

Two citizens of the White Earth Nation shall be elected at large to serve constituencies outside the White Earth Reservation in the State of Minnesota.

Article 8

The Legislative Council shall have the authority to propose changes in the count of elected Representatives based on changes in population or the number of acknowledged communities. Proposals to change the count of Representatives shall be subject to a majority vote of citizens in a referendum.

Article 9

Candidates for elected government offices shall be cit-

izens who reside within the treaty boundaries according to the Treaty of March 19, 1867, of the White Earth Nation, except two citizen members of the Legislative Council who shall be elected at large in the State of Minnesota.

White Earth Nation

Article 10

Citizens who have been convicted of a felony may vote in elections and referenda but shall not be eligible to hold elected offices in the White Earth Nation.

Article 11

Candidates for elected government office shall be at least twenty-five years of age at the time of the election.

Article 12

The Legislative Council shall appoint a new President in the event of the death, resignation, incapacity, or removal of the duly elected President. The appointed President shall serve the remainder of the elected term of the office.

Article 13

The Legislative Council has the power to initiate impeachment proceedings of elected representatives of the government for specific allegations of misconduct, criminal indictments, or felony convictions. To initiate impeachment procedures requires at least a two-thirds vote of the Legislative Council.

Article 14

There shall be two distinct procedures of impeachment. The first is admonition of misconduct but no other action or decree, and the second procedure is impeachment and removal from elected office.

Article 15

The White Earth Nation shall obligate candidates for elected offices not to disburse in campaign services, promotion and advertising more than three times the amount of the annual national family poverty guidelines, for one person in the Contiguous States, established and published in the Federal Register by the United States Department of Human Services.

Article 16

Candidates for elected office shall file a formal report no later than thirty days after the election with the Chief Judge of the Board of Elections. The report shall be an affirmation of total election contributions and disbursements of the candidate.

Article 17

The President and Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation shall maintain public records and documents for posterity. The President shall nominate an archive to secure the public records and documents.

Chapter 7: Community Councils

The Community Councils shall be initiated and established in geographically based communities by citizens of the White Earth Nation. The Community Councils shall provide communal information, guidance, and recommendations to both the Legislative Council and the President on matters of concern to the citizens. The Community Councils shall promote, advance and strengthen the philosophy of mino-bimaadiziwin, to live a good life, and in good health, through the creation and formation of associations, events and activities that demonstrate, teach and encourage respect, love, bravery, humility, wisdom, honesty and truth for citizens.

Proposed Constitution

Chapter 8: Council of Elders

The Council of Elders shall be nominated by citizens and designated by the Legislative Council. The Council of Elders shall provide ideas and thoughts on totemic associations, traditional knowledge, cultural and spiritual practices, native survivance, and considerations of resource management, and advice the Legislative Council. The Council of Elders shall consist of twenty citizens of the White Earth Nation who are at least fiftyfive years of age at the time of appointment.

Chapter 9: Youth Council

The Youth Council shall be nominated by citizens and designated by the Legislative Council. The Youth Council shall provide information about matters that effect young people and advise the President and Legislative Council. The Youth Council shall consist of twenty citizens who are between the ages of twelve and eighteen, and who are residents of the White Earth Nation.

Chapter 10: Separation of Powers

The White Earth Nation shall be divided into three separate branches of government. The Executive branch is the elected President, the Board of Elections, Council of Elders, Youth Council, and other executive designations. The Legislative branch includes the Representatives elected to the Legislative Council. The Judicial branch of government is the Judiciary and White Earth Courts. The three respective branches of government shall have no authority over any other branch, except for certain nominations and other provisions specified in the Constitution of the White Earth Nation.

Chapter 11: The President Article 1

The President, or White Earth Chief, shall be the official national and international elected representative of the White Earth Nation.

Article 2

The President shall have the authority to secure and accept grants, negotiate agreements with associations, foundations, organizations, institutions, corporations, municipal, state, federal, and local governments, and other states and nations in the world with the ratification of the Legislative Council.

Article 3

The President shall be responsible for the administration and management of the government, and shall implement and execute the laws, ordinances, resolutions, and other enactments of the Legislative Council.

Article 4

The President shall approve by signature the laws, ordinances, measures, resolutions and appropriations of the Legislative Council.

Article 5

The President shall have the power to veto proposed laws, ordinances, measures, and resolutions initiated by the Legislative Council.

Article 6

The President shall return within five days vetoed or rejected proposed laws, ordinances and measures with a required statement of objection.

Article 7

The Legislative Council may overcome any veto of proposed laws, ordinances and resolutions by a two-thirds

Proposed Constitution

vote of the elected Representatives.

Article 8

The President shall have the authority to appoint executive branch administrators and other officials to serve the White Earth Nation.

Article 9

The President shall have the power to schedule and preside over sessions of the Legislative Council.

Article 10

The President shall not vote except in the case of a tie vote of the Legislative Council.

Article 11

The President shall deliver an annual address dedicated to the State of the White Earth Nation.

Article 12

The President shall be bonded as an elected official.

Article 13

The President may serve no more than two four year elected terms.

Article 14

The President shall promote, protect, and defend cultural and political sovereignty and the Constitution of the White Earth Nation.

Article 15

The President shall have the authority to nominate honorary ambassadors, consuls, citizens, and to initiate and establish embassies of the White Earth Nation to serve the national cultural and international concerns of native survivance and moral equity.

Chapter 12: The Legislative Couoncil Article 1

Representatives of the Legislative Council shall propose and enact laws, codes, ordinances, resolutions, and statutes of the White Earth Nation.

Article 2

The Legislative Council shall have the authority to raise general revenue, levy and collect taxes for government services and operations, establish license and service fees, and initiate other specific levies and taxes for the welfare of the citizens of the White Earth Nation.

Article 3

The Legislative Council shall have the authority to borrow money, issue public bonds, appropriate funds for the operation of the government, and to initiate other monetary policies in the interests of the White Earth Nation.

Article 4

The Legislative Council shall promote and protect the health, public welfare, safety, education, and the cultural and political sovereignty of the citizens of the White Earth Nation.

Article 5

The Legislative Council shall establish subordinate and secondary boards, appoint delegates, and reserves the right to review the initiatives and actions of the delegates and boards.

Article 6

proper management of government programs, land, waterways, resources, commerce, public housing, transportation, casino operations, business enterprises, and other assets of the White Earth Nation.

Article 7

The Legislative Council shall have the authority to control the distribution and sale of alcoholic beverages within the treaty boundaries of the White Earth Nation.

Article 8

The Legislative Council shall not establish, support, or embody any covert political, military, or intelligence operations, without due process of law and legal warrants, against peaceable citizens of the White Earth Nation.

Article 9

The Legislative Council shall have residual powers, and the powers of governance provided, specified and entrusted in the Constitution shall not be construed as the limitation of legislative power or authority. The powers of the government not specifically expressed or entrusted to the Legislative Council shall be reserved to the citizens of the White Earth Nation.

Chapter 13: The Secretary Treasurer Article 1

The Secretary Treasurer shall be bonded and responsible for monetary and financial matters, resources, documents and records of the Legislative Council. Government records shall be available for public inspection and review.

Article 2

The Secretary Treasurer shall schedule an annual audit of funds, monetary transactions and records, deposits and expenditures by a duly certified independent auditor.

Article 3

The Secretary Treasurer shall carry through official duties and responsibilities of the President and the Representatives of the Legislative Council.

Article 4

The Secretary Treasurer shall be a voting member of the Legislative Council.

Article 5

The Secretary Treasure shall provide and publish an annual fiscal report and accounting of the White Earth Nation.

Chapter 14: The Judiciary

Article 1

The Judiciary shall consist of the White Earth Court, Court of Appeals, and other courts established by the Legislative Council.

Article 2

The White Earth Court shall have the power of judicial review and jurisdiction over any legal matters, disputes, civil procedures and criminal laws, ordinances, regulations, codes and customs of family relations, protection, and dissolution, adoption, domestic violence, juvenile justice, and probate, housing and property, conservation, taxation, governance, the corporate code, election disputes, and constitutional issues of the White Earth Nation.

Article 3

The Court of Appeals shall have original and appel-The Legislative Council shall be responsible for the late jurisdiction. The Court of Appeals shall hear case

appeals and issues initiated by the Legislative Council. Decisions of the Court of Appeals are conclusive.

Chapter 15: Powers of the White Earth Courts Article 1

The Courts shall have the authority to interpret and construe the laws, ordinances, and regulations of the Legislative Council and the Constitution of the White Earth Nation.

Article 2

The Courts shall issue legal decisions, injunctions, reviews, writs of mandamus, extradition, certiorari, writs of habeas corpus, and other legal orders, instruments and documents.

Article 3

The Courts shall establish procedures, rules, legal forms, and review by formal requests of citizens the specific and comprehensive constitutional validity of laws, ordinances and codes initiated and passed by the Legislative Council.

Article 4

The Courts shall ensure and practice restorative justice in civil actions, minor criminal offences, juvenile and family matters, whenever appropriate to resolve complaints and disputes of the White Earth Nation.

Article 5

The Courts shall establish and publish a code of judicial ethics.

Chapter 16: The White Earth Judges Article 1

The White Earth Court shall consist of a Chief Judge and Associate Judges. The Chief Judge shall be appointed and removed by the Legislative Council.

Article 2

The Chief Judge shall appoint the necessary number of Associate Judges for five-year terms with the consent of the Legislative Council.

Article 3

The Court of Appeals shall consist of three judges and shall be appointed by the Legislative Council in consultation with the Chief Judge.

Article 4

The Chief Judge shall not be a member of the Court of Appeals.

Article 5

Judges of the Court of Appeals shall serve for fiveyears, and may otherwise practice law or be associated with a law firm.

Article 6

The judges of the courts shall be at least twenty-five years of age, of proven moral character, and who have not been convicted of a felony.

Article 7

The judges shall be graduates of a law school accredited by the American Bar Association.

Article 8

The judges shall be admitted to the bar to practice law in native communities, state, or federal courts.

White Earth Nation

Article 9

The judges shall be experienced lawyers, magistrates, or judges.

Article 10

The judges shall have knowledge of Anishinaabe culture, traditions, and general history.

Article 11

The judges shall recuse themselves, an assertion of judicial disqualification, as unsuitable to perform legal duties where there are possible conflicts of interest, or the appearance of personal interests, or potential challenges of partiality.

Article 12

The judges shall be impeached by the Legislative Council and removed from judicial practice for abuses of impartiality, bribery, political impropriety, or felony conviction.

Chapter 17: Legislative Council Meetings Article 1

The Legislative Council shall meet at least once each month to conduct government business. The time and place of each session shall be posted in advance.

Article 2

Citizens of the White Earth Nation have the right to attend sessions of the Legislative Council.

Article 3

The President has the authority to schedule special and emergency sessions of the Legislative Council.

Article 4

The Legislative Council by a majority vote and written request shall have the authority to schedule a special session.

Article 5

The President shall be obligated to schedule a special session of the Legislative Council by an official petition of thirty percent of eligible citizen voters of the White Earth Nation.

Article 6

The President may schedule an emergency session of the Legislative Council without written notice to consider urgent matters, services, protection of the health, welfare and safety of the citizens and communities of the White Earth Nation.

Article 7

The Legislative Council shall conduct no other business than the specific stated purpose of an emergency session.

Article 8

The Legislative Council shall have the authority to meet in closed executive sessions with the President to discuss matters of litigation, proposed and discreet negotiations, and other concerns of confidentiality.

Article 9

The Legislative Council shall not decide actions on matters of litigation or confidentiality in closed executive sessions except when the outcome of the session has been fully reported in subsequent public sessions of the Legislative Council. The results of executive sessions shall be decided by vote at a public meeting.

Article 10

Legislative Council motions, votes, resolutions and decisions shall be noted and preserved in the official minutes of the sessions.

Article 11

Legislative Council actions, decisions, and enactments of record shall be available for inspection by citizens during normal business hours of the government.

Article 12

The Legislative Council shall date and number each and every resolution, ordinance, law and statute, and cite the appropriate authority of the Constitution of the White Earth Nation.

Article 13

The Legislative Council shall prepare a certificate for each resolution, ordinance, and statute that confirms the presence of a quorum and indicates the number of members voting for or against each enactment.

Article 14

The Legislative Council shall constitute a quorum by a simple majority of fifty-one percent of the elected members at a duly schedule session.

Chapter 18: Ethics and Impeachment Article 1

Elected members of the government may be impeached or removed from office by a recorded twothirds vote of the entire Legislative Council.

Article 2

The Legislative Council may impeach or remove from office an elected member of government for a felony conviction in a court of competent jurisdiction.

Article 3

The Legislative Council may impeach or remove from office an elected member of the government for two misdemeanor convictions, including driving while intoxicated, but not including ordinary traffic violations.

Article 4

Elected officials of the government may not be suspended or removed from office without due process of law.

Article 5

The Legislative Council may impeach for cause an elected member of the government. The impeachment may be a form of admonition, a warning or legal statement of charges, or the impeachment may be based on an indictment or conviction for a felony, and the forcible removal of an official of the government.

Article 6

The White Earth Nation shall provide for a recall election of an elected official of the government. Citizens have the right to initiate a petition to recall an elected official. The petition shall secure at least two-thirds of the eligible voters for a recall election. The petition may be political and may include allegations, grievances, complaints and assertions of misconduct, nonfeasance, or mismanagement by an elected official of the government.

Chapter 19: Petitions and Referenda Article 1

The Legislative Council may initiate a referendum by a vote of two-thirds of the elected Representatives.

Article 2

Citizens of the White Earth Nation may initiate a referendum by evidence of a vote of thirty percent of the eligible citizen voters.

Article 3

The Legislative Council and eligible citizens may present proposed laws, ordinances, and initiatives to a referendum vote of the electorate, according to certified evidence of the constitutional process.

Article 4

The referendum vote shall be held within one hundred and eighty days from the official receipt of the petition, unless the scheduled date of the referendum is within six months of a general election, in that event the referendum would be presented to the eligible voters in the general election.

Article 5

Scheduled referenda shall be conducted according to the rules and regulations of the Board of Elections and the Election Code.

Chapter 20: Amendments to the Constitution

The Constitution of the White Earth Nation may be amended by two-thirds of the recorded eligible votes in a duly called election or referendum to amend the Constitution. Eligible voters must be formally informed by written and published notices of the proposed amendment to the Constitution of the White Earth Nation.

See Bylaws of Governance on Page 15 and Definitions of Selected Words on Page 19

RATIFICATION OF THE CONSTITUTION

The sworn delegates to the White Earth Constitutional Convention hereby duly ratify for a citizen referendum the Constitution of the White Earth Nation.

The Constitution of the White Earth Nation was duly ratified on April 4, 2009, at the Shooting Star Casino Event Center, Mahnomen, Minnesota.

The ratification was by secret ballots of twenty-four delegates present. Sixteen delegates voted for ratification, and eight delegates votes against ratification.

Gerald Vizenor, Distinguished Professor of American Studies at the University of New Mexico, was a delegate to the Constitutional Convention and the Principal Writer of the proposed Constitution of the White Earth Nation.

The Constitution Proposal Team included Erma Vizenor, President of the White Earth Nation, Jill May Doerfler, Assistant Professor, Department of Indian Studies, University of Minnesota, Duluth, JoAnne E. Stately, Vice President of Development for the Indian Land Tenure Foundation, and Anita Fineday, Chief Tribal Court Judge, White Earth Nation.

David E. Wilkins, Professor of American Indian Studies, University of Minnesota, was a Special Consultant to the Constitutional Convention and the Proposal Team.

Anton Treuer, Professor, American Indian Resource Center, Languages and Ethnic Studies, Bemidji State University, was the translator of the Preamble to the Constitution.

THE CONSTITUTION OF THE WHITE EARTH NATION

BYLAWS OF GOVERNANCE

Chapter 1: Duties of Elected Officials

Article 1

The President shall preside at regular and special meetings of the Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation.

Article 2

The President shall implement resolutions and ordinances of the Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation.

Article 3

The President shall sign official documents of the government.

Article 4

The President shall be responsible for the general supervision, performance, and evaluations of government officers, employees, and committees, and the established rules of governance.

Article 5

The President shall prepare regular reports on government negotiations, programs, communications, and other activities, at scheduled meetings of the Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation.

Article 6

The President shall manage the general and official business activities of the government, and shall assume the responsibilities of enacted resolutions of the Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation.

Article 7

The President shall formally name a member of the Legislative Council to serve as the Presiding Officer, in the absence of the President, or the Secretary Treasurer shall serve as the Presiding Officer of the White Earth Nation.

Article 8

The Secretary Treasurer shall preside at regular and special meetings of the Legislative Council in the absence or disability of the President.

Article 9

The Secretary Treasurer of the White Earth Nation shall record and preserve minutes, transactions, and decisions of the Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation.

Article 10

The Secretary Treasure shall prepare annual reports on government operations, transactions, and business for the President and Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation.

Article 11

The Secretary Treasurer and President shall sign official documents of the White Earth Nation.

Article 12

The Secretary Treasurer shall prepare the necessary notices of scheduled government meetings and elections.

Article 13

The Secretary Treasurer of the White Earth Nation shall receive, record, and deposit money of the government in a bank, trust, depository, or other financial institution designated by the President and Legislative Council.

Anishinaabeg Today

Article 14

The Secretary Treasurer of the White Earth Nation shall maintain certified accounting records, and financial documents, for appropriate official inspections, and prepare the disbursement of government money and vouchers for signatures by the President and Secretary.

Article 15

The Treasurer shall prepare a monthly report on the financial transactions, accounts, disbursements, and other documents for the President and Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation.

Article 16

The President and Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation shall describe and determine the specific duties and functions of appointed government committees, officers, and employees.

Chapter 2: Meeting of the Legislative Council

Article 1

The Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation shall hold a regular official meeting of the government at least once a month.

Article 2

The Secretary Treasurer of the White Earth Nation shall provide and post official public notices of meetings, the date, time, and place, by regular mail or by government websites and email notification to elected government officials, and other general public notices, at least ten days before the scheduled meeting.

Article 3

The President of the White Earth Nation shall have the power to waive the required notice time and schedule special or emergency meetings of the Legislative Council.

Article 4

The President shall recognize a quorum as one more than half of the total number present at a meeting of elected members of the Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation.

Article 5

The President shall designate an acting parliamentarian for official meetings of the government, and the procedures of the scheduled meetings of the Legislative Council shall be conducted according to the standard or revised Robert's Rules of Order.

Article 6

The Legislative Council, and government committees, shall conduct meetings according to routine procedures. The President shall call scheduled meetings, and shall consider and follow this order at meetings: invite an invocation, call the roll to determine an official quorum, approve the minutes of the last scheduled meeting, consider reports of officers and committees, review any unfinished business of the government, move to adjourn the meeting, and close with stories.

Chapter 3: Procedures and Oath of Elected Office

Article 1

Newly elected members of the government of the White Earth Nation shall be formally installed in office, following the election, at the first regular meeting of the Legislative Council.

Article 2

Newly elected members of the government of the White Earth Nation shall subscribe, repeat, and declare the

oath of office by this statement: I [State Name] do hereby solemnly declare (swear, or affirm) that I shall support, preserve, and protect the Constitution of the White Earth Nation and the Constitution of the United States of America."

Chapter 4: Amendments to the Bylaws

Article 1

The Bylaws of the White Earth Nation may be amended in the same manner and procedure that is provided in the Constitution of the White Earth Nation.

Chapter 5: Fiscal Policy and Audit Procedures

Article 1

The fiscal year of the government of the White Earth Nation shall begin on July 1 of each calendar year.

Article 2

The monetary documents, financial records, and other money accounts of the White Earth Nation shall be duly audited at least once a year by a certified auditor, and by direction of the President, Legislative Council, and authorized representatives of the United States Secretary of the Interior.

Chapter 6: Duties of Government Committees

Article 1

The Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation shall establish by formal directives the bylaws, duties, and procedures of government councils and committees.

Article 2

The Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation shall establish by formal directives and define by rules and regulations the duties, functions, and responsibilities of government councils and committees, appointed representatives, and employees of the government.

Article 3

The Legislative Council of the White Earth Nation shall establish by formal directives the duties and responsibilities of contract representatives of the government.

The proposed Constitution of the White Earth Nation and Bylaws shall be presented to qualified tribal voters in a future referendum for adoption and shall be subject to approval by the Assistant Secretary of the United States of America.

Attention Off Reservation AT Subscribers!

- ✓ Is your mailing address correct?
- ✓ Is your name spelled correct?
- ✓ Have you moved recently?
- ✓ Did you cancel the paper to your old address?

Please contact us at: today@whiteearth.com (**preferred**) or call (218) 983-3285 Ext. 5903.

*The newspaper **DOES NOT** automatically follow you when you move so please let us know your current address. Many papers are still being mailed to old addresses.

CONSTITUTION OF THE WHITE EARTH NATION Definitions of Selected Words

CONTINENTAL LIBERTY: Continental refers to the continent of North American, and native liberty refers to the natural freedoms and rights of natives before contact by Europeans. Natives had established extensive and active trade routes throughout the continent and hemisphere. Trade routes, and other associations of native communities required a sophisticated sense of rights, travel, trade, and native liberty.

INALIENABLE RIGHTS: These are rights that cannot be taken away, and no one can give these rights away. Inalienable rights, for instance, are human rights, and the freedom of native religions.

TOTEMIC ASSOCIATIONS: The Anishinaabeg and many other native cultures created a tradition of totems or clans, the names of animals, birds, and other creatures, as sources of wisdom, personal values, inspiration, and the union of native families, or traditional totemic associations.

SURVIVANCE: Survivance means more than the ordinary act of survival. Survivance is an active sense of native presence over absence, or a sense of presence in native stories over an absence of natives in histories. Survivance is a renunciation, or rejection, of political and cultural dominance, and the unbearable sentiments of tragedy and victimry. Survivance is native courage, spirit, and native traditions.

RECIPROCAL ALTUISM: These two words mean to return or give back as a mutual, humanitarian act, for the benefit of others, and in the unselfish compassionate interests of others. Reciprocal is to share a mutual obligation, and altruistic is to be unselfish, benevolent, and compassionate.

REDRESS OF GRIEVANCES: Citizens have a right to correct, or rectify, or remedy a grievance, or an injustice. The right to remedy an injustice, or grievance, is protected under the Constitution.

ESPOUSING: This word means to embrace, or support, or to favor or promote an issue or cause.

ARTISTIC IRONY: Literature, stories, academic and historical narratives, and creative, literary art, painting, sculpture, and other forms of art may be critical and demonstrate or express mockery, satire, and humor, in a way that may not please some citizens, politicians, teachers, and others. The nature of irony, or the political and creative practice of expressing one thing to mean another, and to be critical of others by irony is protected by the Constitution. The protection of artistic irony is an extension of the right of free speech.

BANISHMENT: Some native governments allow banishment from reservations for various reasons, felonies and other crimes. The idea of banishment is a violation of human and civil rights, or inalienable rights. The Constitution of the White Earth Nation protects citizens from banishment.

MORAL EQUITY: The idea of moral equity is the concern, or mutual concern for others, based on ethical principles, human values and altruistic traditions. The expression of these principles, or moral values, is used here in the context of equity, or fair practices and justice. The president has the authority to initiate and establish cultural embassies, for instance, according to the Constitution of the White Earth Nation.

WRIT OF MANDAMUS: A writ, or formal legal written order in the name of a court issued to order a person or another court to carry out a statutory duty.

CERTIORARI: The word means a legal writ or written order by one court to review the decisions of another court, or a lower court, in other words, an appeal of a court decision.

HABEAS CORPUS: The practice of habeas corpus is a legal action by which a person is allowed to petition a court for the protection of rights, a review by the court, a mandate, in other words, a writ or an order to bring a person to a court to determine the cause and authority of detention or incarceration. The Magna Carta, of the Great Charter of Freedoms, first issued almost eight hundred years ago, announced that no person would be imprisoned, or exiled, without the lawful judgment of his peers. Later, these principles of fundamental justice were provided in the Habeas Corpus Act of 1679 in England. The Constitution of the White Earth Nation, and the Constitution of the United States, declares the similar traditions and principles of habeas corpus, human rights, and native liberty.

CONSTITUTION: A constitution is a formal, written, ratified document that provides and describes the basic laws, rights, protections, and principles of a nation, and the organization of governance. A constitution defines the process of elections, the separation of powers, the duties, service, and responsibilities of citizens, elected and appointed representatives of the government.

LINEAR DESCENT: The direct descent, a linear, straight line of origins in a genealogy, the direct descent by hereditary, or related ancestors and families. Linear descent, in the context of the Constitution of the White Earth Nation, includes parents and grandparents, but not uncles, aunts, or cousins.

REFERENDUM: A referendum is a general vote open to all eligible citizen voters, or the electorate, on a single political issue, petition, measure, amendment, or considerations of a new constitution. The word referendum is singular, and the plural is referenda.

Attention White Earth Urban Members

The White Earth Urban Liaison staff is holding a Community Meeting for all interested White Earth members on Tuesday, Sept. 29 from 5:30 to 7:30 p.m. at the White Earth Urban Office located at 1308 East Franklin Avenue in Minneapolis. **Please note this is a new location!** A meal wil be provided and there will be a drawing for a door prize. **ALSO**,

Staff from White Earth Enrollments and Licensing (ID's) will be available Sept. 29 from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.

Call Carl or Marcy for more information at 612-872-8388.

MCT Finance Corporation

If you are an enrolled member of the Minnesota Chippewa Tribe and are interested in a low interest mortgage, call (218) 335-8582 for an appointment with a loan officer.

For more information, download an application, or view homes for sale checkout our website at: www.mnchippewatribe.org or www.mctfc.org

Influenza from Page 9

ing four to five days after the onset. How does influenza spread?

Influenza is spread through the air from the infected person coughing or sneezing. It can also be spread by direct contact with respiratory droplets. What are the symptoms of influenza?

Typical flu is characterized by a sudden onset of fever, aching muscles, sore throat, and nonproductive cough. Other symptoms may include runny nose, headache, a burning sensation in the chest, and eye pain and sensitivity to light.

How serious is influenza?

Although many people think of influenza as a type of cold, it is really a specific and serious disease. Disease complications and death are more common among young children, the elderly, and those with chronic diseases. In the United States, the number of flu-related deaths has increased since 1990. This increase is due in part to the increase in the number of persons age 65 years or older. There is an average of 36,000 influenza associated deaths per season.

Can the vaccine cause influenza?

No! This common misconception keeps many people from getting the influenza vaccine.

Neither the injectable vaccine nor the intranasal vaccine can cause influenza. The injectable influenza vaccine contains only killed viruses and cannot cause influenza disease. Fewer than 1% of people who are vaccinated develop influenza-like symptoms, such as mild fever and muscle aches, after vaccination. These

side effects are not the same as having the actual disease.

The intranasal influenza vaccine (Flumist) does not cause influenza either. The intranasal influenza vaccine contains live viruses that can produce mild symptoms similar to a cold. While the viruses are able to produce protective immunity, their strength has been reduced so they cannot produce influenza disease. Protective immunity develops 1 to 2 weeks after vaccination.

Also, to many people, the flu is any illness with fever and cold symptoms. If they get any viral illness, they may blame it on the influenza shot or think they got the flu despite being vaccinated. Influenza vaccine only protects against certain influenza viruses, not all viruses.

When can I get the flu shot?

The adult vaccine (19 yrs and older) is already available at the clinic. The flu shot for those 6 months and older will be arriving any day. The clinic will again have Flu Shot Fridays with staff available just to do flu shots. You can also come to the clinic any day except Wednesday mornings for your shot. The new H1N1 vaccine should be available sometime in October.

Reference: www.cdc.gov, www.immunize.org.

Get vaccinated every year! Get your children vaccinated!

Be sure your parents get vaccinated, too!